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The Clay County Courthouse is a good example of the Neo-Classical Revival which 
dominated public buildings in the early part of the 20th Century. The structure is 
substantially unaltered since its completion in 1906 from plans provided by C.W. Carlton 
which drew heavily from the Italian Rennaissance styles.

Rising three stories above grade over a partial basement, the rectangular court­ 
house is situated in the center of the town square of Ashland with the long axis of 
the building running north and south. The square has been landscaped with small shrubs 
and fur trees and is defined by a low masonry retaining wall. Construction is of load 
bearing brick masonry with limestone columns, lintels and sills and cast stone ornament. 
Lower floor masonry walls contain deep horizontal reveals at every fifth brick course, 
while the two upper stories are unified by brick pilasters which rise a full height to 
a deep architrave with projecting moulded cornices and continuous dentil mouldings.

Primary entrances occur on the east and west, with less important entrances on 
the north and south ends. Emphasis is given the entrances by stepping out the walls 
slightly to create extra width to accommodate porches with three arched masonry 
openings. Above the east and west entrances independent granite columns rise from the 
second floor to the full height of the building, creating a two-story high balcony, 
punctuated by stone balustrades which project slightly in rounded form over the first 
entrance arches. This balcony is capped by a deeply hollowed pediment which is re­ 
peated on all four sides of the building. Balconies on the north and south have been 
omitted and half round columns are applied directly to the exterior walls. All 
column capitals are modified Ionic with egg and dart design worked into the details.

The building is surmounted by an impressive two-story high rotunda with a domed 
roof and cupola. The main dome features a clock on all four faces, while the cupola, 
or bell tower, is terminated with a sculpture holding the scales of justice. A small 
false dome is located on each of the four corners of the building for design effect.

The interior of the building features a central lobby under the grand rotunda. 
This space rises full height and has a balcony at the second story overlooking the 
main floor. Access from the main lobby to the second floor is by a curving staircase, 
executed in baroque fashion, while stairs to the third floor are enclosed and unadorned.

Located on the second floor at the south end of the building, the courtroom is 
a two-story space with spectator galleries built over the east and west ends of the 
room. Detailing of the woodtrim and casework is sparse. The main vault is located 
in the Probate Office on the ground floor and features a steel barrell-vault formed 
eeiling which is visible, offering evidence of the reinforced construction methods 
employed in the vault area.

Interior finishes consist of terrazo floors on the ground floor lobby and halls, 
with new resilient flooring having been installed over the original wood floor on the 
second and third level halls and offices. Walls and ceilings are of plaster and single 
wood paneled doors with transoms and simply detailed casework are typical throughout 
the building.

Overall condition is fair; the west entrance has been sealed off and the interior 
hall has been partitioned for office space, interior finishes require restoration, and 
wiring, lighting and heating systems need to be upgraded.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

One of the few surviving historic structures in Ashland or Clay County, the court­ 
house is a good example of the Neo-Classical Revival style with design motifs clearly 
derived from the Italian Rennaissance building styles. Such details as the strong 
horizontal emphasis created by the use of deep reveals at every fifth brick course in 
the lower floor masonry strongly suggest the rusticated stone bases of the porto-typical 
Italian Palazzo while the curving staircase from the main lobby to the second floor 
resembles an interior adaptation of the exterior stairs used on numerous Rennaissance 
buildings.

Shortly after the Alabama Legislature created Clay County in 1866 from portions of 
Talladega and Randolph counties, Ashland was selected as the county seat and has served 
as the center of governmental activity and political life in the county. The earliest 
courthouse burned on December 18, 1875, destroying not only the original buildings but 
all county records, documents and papers. A second building was erected on the same 
site following the fire and served until the present structure was completed in 1906. 
C. W. Carlton, who also designed the nearby Cleburne County Courthouse, was hired to 
provide plans and specifications for the structure. When completed it was the most 
imposing structure in the entire county, a distinction which it still retains.

Ashland was the boyhood home of the late Supreme Court Justice Hugo L. Black, Clay 
County' most famous native son. Black spent his childhood years in the town and briefly 
(1906-1907) practiced law from an office near the new Courthouse.

The courthouse is in fair condition and tentative county plans are to restore the 
structure for continued use.
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